
 

The CITY OF DAYTONA BEACH 
                                                                REDEVELOPMENT DIVISION 

POST OFFICE BOX 2451 
 DAYTONA BEACH, FLORIDA 32115-2451 

PHONE (386) 671-8180                                    
                                                                                                     FAX (386) 671-8187  

  
AGENDA 

DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT BOARD 
Tuesday, September 15, 2015 12:00 P.M. 

City Hall Commission Chambers 
 
NOTICE: If any person decides to appeal any decision of the Board at this meeting, they will need a record 
of the proceedings.  Interested persons may wish to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings before 
the Board is made, including any testimony or evidence presented to the Board.  The City does not prepare 
or provide a verbatim record of Board proceedings.        
 

1. Call to Order  
2. Roll Call 
3. Approval of the minutes:  

A. Regular Meeting: June 2, 2015 
B. Joint Workshop: August 13, 2015 

4. Downtown Board Priorities 
5. Redevelopment Project Updates 
6. Public Comments 
7. Board Comments 
8. Adjournment 



DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT BOARD 
MINUTES 

Tuesday, June 2, 2015 
 
 

A meeting of the Downtown Redevelopment Board was held Tuesday, June 2, 2015, at 
12:00 p.m. in the Commission Chambers, 301 S. Ridgewood Avenue, Daytona Beach, 
Florida.  The following people were present: 
 
Board Members Present 
 
Mr. Harold Goodemote, Chair 
Mr. Buddy Budiansky 
Ms. Quanita May 
Dr. Kent Sharples  
Mr. Michael Shewmaker 
 
Board Members Absent 
 
Mr. Robert Abraham 
Ms. Cathy Washington 
Mr. Jack White 
 
Staff Members Present 
 
Mr. Reed Berger, Redevelopment Director 
Mr. Jason Jeffries, Redevelopment Project Manager 
Ms. Carrie Avallone, Assistant City Attorney 
Ms. Becky Groom, Board Secretary 
 
1. Call to Order 
 

Mr. Goodemote called the meeting to order at 12:06 p.m. 
 
2. Roll Call 
 

Ms. Groom called the roll and noted members present as stated above.   
 
3. Approval of Minutes – May 5, 2015 
 

Board Action: 
 
Mr. Budiansky made a motion to approve the minutes of the Regular Meeting of 
May 5, 2015.  Dr. Sharples seconded the motion and it was approved 
unanimously (5-0). 

 
 



4. DEV2015-024, Site Plan – American Born Salvage (Continued from May 5, 
2015, meeting) 

 
Mr. Jeffries presented the Staff Report which is included as part of the packet.  
Mr. Jeffries stated the Board approved the Conditional Use for this project at the 
May 5, 2015 meeting; however, there were issues with the exterior design so the 
site plan consideration was delayed until the June meeting.  Mr. Jeffries stated the 
applicant made the revisions as requested by the Board to include doors and 
windows that are more compatible with the architectural style of the building.  
Mr. Jeffries stated the variances requested were approved by the Board of 
Adjustment at their May meeting.  Mr. Jeffries provided the Board with 
comments from Board Member Jack White who was unable to attend today’s 
meeting. 
 
Applicant’s Presentation: 
 
Colleen Miles, Land Development Resource Group, was in attendance 
representing the applicant. 
 
Public Comments: 
 
John Nicholson, 413 N. Grandview, asked if the woodwork will be vertical or 
horizontal. 
 
Ms. Miles stated the woodwork will be vertical. 
 
Board Action: 
 
A motion was made by Dr. Sharples, seconded by Mr. Budiansky, to approve 
DEV2015-024, Site Plan, American Born Salvage, as presented in the staff report.  
The motion carried unanimously (5-0). 
 

5. Redevelopment Project Updates 
 

There was not an update from staff on redevelopment projects. 
 

6. Public Comments 
 

Steve Bonifay spoke representing R & S Properties at 230 S. Beach Street.  Mr. 
Bonifay provided a letter to the Board regarding plans for the property at 230 S. 
Beach Street.  Mr. Bonifay stated the owner of the property does not want to 
lease the property and would like to open his own restaurant that will feature 
roof-top fine dining.   
 
Mr. Goodemote suggested that Mr. Bonifay meet with Mr. Jeffries to determine 
what the requirements will be for his proposed project.  He also suggested that 
he meet with a design professional to develop plans for the project. 

 2 



 
Mr. Jeffries stated the site is a designated historic structure so a Certificate of 
Appropriateness will be required.   
 
Mr. Budiansky stated there is a residential neighbor to the north and that living 
area may be affected by a roof-top restaurant. 
 
Mr. Bonifay stated his proposed structure will be in the front of the building and 
the neighbor’s living area is in the rear. 
 

7. Board Comments 
 
 There were no Board comments. 
 
8. Adjournment 
 

There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting was 
adjourned at 12:22 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
________________________________  ______________________________ 
Harold Goodemote, Chair   Becky Groom 
      Recording Secretary 

 

 3 



JOINT WORKSHOP 
DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT BOARD 

AND 
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

MINUTES 
Thursday, August 13, 2015 

 
A Joint Workshop between the Downtown Redevelopment Board and the Downtown 
Development Authority was held on Thursday, August 13, 2015, at 4:00 p.m. in Conference 
Room 149B, 301 S. Ridgewood Avenue, Daytona Beach, Florida.  The following people were 
present: 
 
Downtown Redevelopment Board Members Present 
 
Mr. Robert Abraham, Chairman 
Dr. Kent Sharples 
Mr. Jack White 
Mr. Michael Shewmaker 
Mr. Buddy Budiansky  
 
Board Members Absent 
 
Mr. Harold Goodemote, Chair 
Ms. Quanita May 
Ms. Cathy Washington 
 
Downtown Development Authority Board Members Present 
 
Mr. Robert Abraham, Chairman 
Ms. Tammy Kozinski  
Ms. Kelly White  
Ms. Sheryl Cook, Vice Chair 
Mr. Joseph H. Hopkins  
 
Staff Members Present 
 
Mr. Reed Berger, Redevelopment Director 
Mr. Jason Jeffries, Redevelopment Project Manager 
Mr. Robert Jagger, Deputy City Attorney 
Marsha McDonald, Office Specialist II 
Becky Groom, Board Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 



1. Call to Order 
 

Mr. Abraham called the meeting to order at 4:05 p.m.  Mr. Abraham stated this is a joint 
workshop and no formal action will be taken since this is not a formal meeting of either 
Board. 
 

2. Roll Call 
 
 Roll was called and members were noted present as stated above. 
 
3. Discussion Item:  Downtown Parking Strategy 
 

Mr. Jeffries presented a slide presentation regarding the downtown area.  Mr. Jeffries 
stated the area encompasses 3-1/2 blocks.  Mr. Jeffries stated 20% of the area is vacant 
for the second floor areas and 14% for the lower floors.  Mr. Jeffries stated there is over 
2,000 parking spaces needed and there is a deficiency of about 650 spaces.  Mr. Jeffries 
stated if the upper spaces in the buildings could be converted to residential it would 
help alleviate parking problems during the day. 
 
Mr. Jeffries stated a short-term solution was the Wayfinding Plan that has been adopted 
by the City that will help identify public parking spaces.  Mr. Jeffries stated discussions 
were being held with private property owners in an attempt to enter into lease 
arrangements for public parking in private parking areas.  Mr. Jeffries stated 
encouraging employee parking on City Island would help alleviate some parking 
problems.  He also stated implementation of valet parking at downtown restaurants 
would help alleviate parking problems. 
 
Mr. Jeffries stated installation of parking meters on the west side of Beach Street would 
increase parking turnover.  Mr. Jeffries stated most customers prefer individual parking 
meters at each space with a minimal charge of $1.50 per hour.  He stated the meters 
would have smart phone capability and would be used Monday through Saturday from 
10:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m.   
 
Mr. Jeffries stated the DDA would have funding in next year’s budget to do website 
upgrades and the availability of free parking areas would be highlighted on the website. 
 
Mr. Jeffries stated the long-term goal was to construct a parking garage in the rear of the 
center block. 
 
Ms. White asked about the cost for the parking meters. 
 
Mr. Jeffries stated the cost would be approximately $20,000 for 35 parking meters.   
 
Ms. White asked if the establishment of a parking fund would be implemented as a 
result of the revenue from the parking meters. 
 
Mr. Jeffries said yes. 

 2 



 
Mr. Budiansky asked about the number of meters per block. 
 
Mr. Jeffries stated there would be 35 meters per block. 
 
Mr. White asked what the funds that are generated from the parking meters would be 
used for. 
 
Mr. Jeffries stated what most cities have done is to use the funds to enhance the 
promotion of the area or for streetscaping maintenance. 
 
Ms. Cook asked if handicapped spaces will be metered. 
 
Mr. Jeffries said yes. 
 
Ms. Kozinski asked if prepaid cards were used, where would the cards be available for 
purchasing. 
 
Mr. Jeffries stated the cards would be available in the businesses. 
 
Ms. Kozinski asked for the prepaid cards to be made available at hotels on beachside. 
 
Ms. Cook stated parking meters would not address the problem entirely and conversion 
of upstairs units to residential would not happen for quite a while.   
 
Dr. Sharples asked if parking meters would resolve the parking problems 
 
Mr. Berger stated Mr. Gibbs’ study reflects that parking meters would help increase 
sales at businesses since there would be a turnover in parking and, as a result, more 
patrons in the stores. 
 
Ms. Kozinski asked what could be done now to help alleviate the parking problems. 
 
Mr. Jeffries stated staff is working to lease a portion of the parking spaces at the former 
Cobb & Cole site. 
 
Dr. Sharples asked if parking could be utilized at the News-Journal Center on the east 
side of Beach Street. 
 
Mr. White stated that site is further away than City Island and he does not believe 
people would walk from there to the downtown.  Mr. White stated structured parking is 
the only solution if convenience is to be attained.  He stated the short-term solution is to 
find space, such as at the former Cobb & Cole site. 
 
Mr. Hopkins stated he had researched placing parking at Riverfront Park, but that site 
was sensitive to some people.  He stated the site could generate over 100 parking spaces 
between Orange Avenue and ISB.   

 3 



 
Mr. Berger stated the incentive for the city to construct a parking garage would be 
construction in the downtown area.   
 
Ms. Kozinski asked how many spaces would be added if the Cobb & Cole site was 
acquired. 
 
Mr. Jeffries stated 20 to 30. 
 
Mr. Berger stated he would like to reach a consensus from the Boards regarding the 
parking issues and parking meters.  Mr. Berger stated staff is working to arrange leases 
with private property owners and the addition of parking meters.  He stated staff would 
continue to pursue the construction of a parking garage with investors. 
 
Rita Robbins-Wahba stated she is the owner of the former Dunn Toy Store site.  She 
stated she has been at the site during non-peak times and there is not available parking.  
She stated she feels the numbers are underestimated and does not feel 650 spaces was 
enough.  She stated she was opposed to parking meters but liked the suggestions of Dr. 
Sharples and Mr. Hopkins for parking at the News-Journal Center and on Riverfront 
Park. 

 
Paul Zappitelli stated there were previously parking meters on Beach Street and they 
were removed.  Mr. Zappitelli stated the current property owner of the building on 
Palmetto was willing to turn the property over to the city.  He stated the site could be 
used for a future site for a parking garage but could be used as an immediate site to add 
parking spaces.  He stated the perception of parking meters would destroy downtown.   
 
Dr. Wahba Wahba, the owner of the former Dunn Toy Store site, stated parking meters 
were a good incentive to turn over the spaces in larger areas, like Jacksonville, but 
Daytona was not ready for parking meters.  He stated he feels parking meters may 
encourage people to go elsewhere.  He stated public parking spaces were needed.  He 
stated perhaps there could be a shuttle from City Island but he does not feel people 
would use City Island to park and then walk to the downtown. 
 
Mr. Shewmaker stated the parking lots at the rear of the buildings were never full. 
 
Mr. Abraham stated perhaps the Wayfinding will help direct people to the rear lots. 
 
Mr. Harshaw stated he feels the numbers for the parking spaces are off.  He stated City 
Island was too far for people to walk.  He suggested leasing spaces from the former tax 
office owner.  Mr. Harshaw stated it was a business owner’s responsibility to tell their 
employees to move their cars.  Mr. Harshaw stated he encourages 1 hour parking on 
Beach Street and having tickets issued for those who exceed. 
 
Mr. Abraham stated the consensus is that the city needs to do what it can to create more 
parking spaces in locations as convenient as possible. 
 

 4 



Ms. White stated the Wayfinding must be done so it was easy to find the back parking.  
She stated creating management for the front parking spaces was imperative.  She stated 
acquiring the property that Mr. Zappitelli has discussed was important.  Ms. White 
stated she prefers parking meters as opposed to ticketing.  Ms. White stated the 
incentive package needed to be reviewed for placing residential units on the second 
floors since it was expensive to locate residential units there.  She stated the public-
private partnership was complex but needs to be pursued.   
 
Ms. Cook stated she would not have a problem paying for employee parking.  She stated 
she does not feel other employers would be opposed to paying for parking spaces for 
their employees.  She stated the property that was available should be acquired. 
 
Mr. Berger stated these items would be brought back to the Boards for discussion. 
 
Mr. Abraham stated he did not feel there was a consensus on parking meters at that 
time. 
 
Mr. White referred to the book “Walkability” and stated if a destination was to be 
created in the downtown, people would be willing to pay for it. 
 
Mr. Abraham stated one newspaper article with negative publicity about parking meters 
would overshadow anything the DDA was trying to do.  He stated parking meters were 
proposed to solve the employee parking problem. 
 

4. Discussion Item:  Redevelopment Project Updates 
 
 Mr. Jeffries presented the staff report which was included as part of the packet. 
 

Ms. Kozinski stated lighting was needed on the buildings to give the appearance of 
being open in the evenings. 

 
Mr. White stated business owners could apply for façade grants from the City to 
improve the lighting on their buildings. 
 

5. Discussion Item:  Downtown Board Priorities 
 

Mr. Jeffries distributed a memo that outlined the priorities as established by the Board 
from 2013.  Mr. Jeffries stated the report would be updated and items that had been 
completed would be deleted.   
 
Mr. Jeffries stated there was activity in the downtown and the Redevelopment Board 
would be meeting in October to discuss Marina Point.  He stated a neighborhood 
meeting would be scheduled for August 27.    He stated there had been some interest in 
vacant buildings as well and the car lots. 
 

 5 



Mr. Berger stated he was discussing a proposal with one investment group for the car 
lots.  He stated the property was clean enough for something to be on the surface but not 
clean enough to be digging the ground around the perimeter.   
 
Ms. Cook stated the site was an eyesore and noted the demolition sign was still there 
and the demolition took place years ago.   
 
Mr. Berger stated he had asked for voluntary cooperation from the owner and real estate 
company. 
 

6. Citizen Comments 
 

Ms. Wahba stated a grocery store was needed in the downtown and felt a neighborhood 
store was needed as well. 

 
Mr. Berger stated staff continues to pursue a grocery store and a boutique hotel for the 
downtown. 

 
7. Board Comments 

 
Mr. White stated he feels widening of the Beach Street sidewalks was a priority. 
 
Mr. Berger stated that priority needed to be reaffirmed by the Boards. 
 
Mr. Abraham asked that discussion of that item be placed on the Redevelopment Board 
agenda in the near future. 
 

8. Adjournment 
 

There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting was adjourned at 
5:45 p.m. 

 
 

__________________________________ _______________________________ 
Robert Abraham, Chairman   Becky Groom 
      Board Secretary 
 

 6 



                             

THE CITY OF DAYTONA BEACH 
REDEVELOPMENT DIVISION 

POST OFFICE BOX 2451 
DAYTONA BEACH, FLORIDA 32115-2451 

PHONE (386) 671-8180 
Fax (386) 671-8187 

 
 
 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 

DATE:  September 11, 2015 
 
TO: Downtown Redevelopment Board 
 
FROM:  Jason Jeffries, Project Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  FY 2015/16 Board Priorities 

 
Based on the discussion at the Joint Workshop with the Downtown Development Authority, staff 
is requesting a follow-up discussion to the recommended board priorities for the Downtown 
Redevelopment Area. Staff is requesting a recommendation regarding the Board’s priorities for 
2015-16.  

Priorities for Downtown Redevelopment Area 

The following is a summary and current status report of the Downtown priorities recommended 
by the Board at the August 2013 meeting. Completed board priorities are shown with a strike-
through and new priorities discussed at the workshop are underlined.  

Priority Notes 

Redevelopment Plans & Codes 
1) Update Redevelopment Plan  Update policies consistent with current 

redevelopment strategies and include targeted 
development sites.  

2) Amend City Comprehensive Plan  Update future land use policies consistent with 
current redevelopment strategies for targeted 
redevelopment sites and proposed new zoning 
districts. 

3) Amend Zoning Map for Downtown Adopt new redevelopment zoning districts.  

4) Adopt Downtown Design Standards Adopt revised design standards for Downtown 

Retail Business Recruitment 
1) Launch Riverfront Shops Business 

Recruitment Web Site 
New landing page with business recruitment 
information for the Riverfront Shops Retail District on 
the Riverfront Shops web site is completed. 

ITEM #4 



2) Attract new retail and restaurant 
businesses with available incentives 

Continue to recruit new business through ICSC and 
use of approved business incentive programs 

Marketing & Promotion 
1) Continue Riverfront Shops 

Marketing Campaign for Retail Area 
and Downtown. 

DDA to continue funding and implementing the 
Riverfront Shops Marketing Campaign as adopted 
with the Downtown Marketing Plan prepared by Gold 
& Associates 

2) Support events that draw customers 
to Riverfront Shops.  

DDA to integrate Downtown events into the Riverfront 
Shops Marketing Campaign that bring targeted 
customers to Downtown 

Targeted Development Sites 
1) Identify Targeted Development Sites Identify sites for potential mixed-use, residential and 

office development and prepare development 
feasibility 

2) Develop new incentives for 
residential and commercial office 
development 

Work with property owners and developers to create 
improved incentives to attract new residential 
development in Downtown. 

3) Promote targeted development sites 
on Downtown web site  

Work with the DDA to promote targeted development 
sites on the updated Riverfront Shops / DDA web 
site. 

Riverfront Master Plan Implementation 
1) Construct improvements to Beach 

Street Streetscape (Orange Ave. to 
Bay St.) 

Develop alternatives to reduce Beach Street from four 
lanes to two lanes; widen west sidewalks, and add 
additional parking.  

2) Prepare feasibility study for the 
Riverfront Park esplanade area  

Prepare preliminary engineering plans for the 
Esplanade section of Riverfront Park (Orange Ave. to 
News Journal Center) to evaluate the concept 
feasibility and to apply for grant funding for 
construction.  

Downtown Retail Area (Riverfront Shops) Parking Management 

Short-Term 

1. Promote Public Parking Locations Coordinate with Riverfront Shops campaign (DDA) 
the location of Downtown public parking through 
press releases, fact sheets, parking maps, and web 
site. 

2. Maximize usage of existing parking 
lots 

Enter into agreement with underutilized, privately 
owned parking lots to provide additional public 
parking. 

3. Implement directional sign program 
in Downtown 

Install way-finding signs consistent with overall City 
directional sign plan to identify Downtown public 
parking lots. 

4. Install Parking Meters on Beach 
Street (Orange Ave. to Magnolia 
Ave.) 

Implement recommendations to install parking meters 
on west side of the street to facilitate parking turnover 
in prime parking locations for retail customers.  

 2 



Long-Term 
1. Provide additional rear Public  

Parking in Riverfront Shops retail 
district  

Purchase additional land in center block to provide 
additional parking in the short-term and to be a future 
mixed-use development site with parking garage.  

2. Construct a structured parking 
garage 

Construct a parking garage, centrally located, to W. 
ISB for easy customer access to accommodate future 
parking demand in the retail district. 

Downtown Improvements 
1) Improve Rear Public Parking Lot 

Lighting 
Project Completed 

2) Repaint Arches and Street 
Directories 

Project Completed 

3) Improve pedestrian lighting on 
Beach Street (Orange Ave. to Bay 
St.) 

Implement plans to improve pedestrian lighting on 
Beach Street and up-light the median palm trees.   

4) Improve City Island electrical 
service for Farmers’ Market 

Project Completed 

5) Replace trash receptacles on Beach 
Street.  

Replace all trash receptacles on Beach Street 
(Orange Ave. to Post Office) to be consistent with 
streetscape furniture. 

6) Install palm tree grates on Beach 
Street. 

Install palm tree grates on Beach Street (Orange Ave. 
to Bay St.) to reduce weeds around the trees.  

7) Install Parking Meters on Beach 
Street (Orange Ave. to Magnolia 
Ave.) 

Moved to new Parking Management section. 

8) Implement directional sign program 
in Downtown 

Moved to new Parking Management section. 

9) Implement plans for Federal Alley to 
be one-way vehicle traffic into rear 
parking lot.   

Project Completed 

10) Provide additional rear Public  
Parking in Riverfront Shops retail 
district  

Moved to new Parking Management section. 

11) Improve ISB streetscapes in 
Riverfront Shops retail district 

Develop and implement plans to improve W. ISB 
Streetscape (Beach St. to Palmetto Ave.) to create 
gateway entrance and destination, improve 
pedestrian access,  consistent with Beach Street in 
the  Riverfront Shops Retail District.    

12) Improve side street streetscapes in 
Riverfront Shops retail district 

Develop and implement plans to improve Orange 
Ave. and Bay St. (Beach St. to Palmetto Ave.) to 
create pedestrian access consistent with Beach 
Street in the Riverfront Shops Retail District.    

 
 3 


	                                                                REDEVELOPMENT DIVISION
	AGENDA
	DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT BOARD
	City Hall Commission Chambers



